
CITY OF SHOREVIEW 
MINUTES 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING 
October 13, 2014 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Martin called the workshop meeting of the Shoreview City Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 
on October 13, 2014. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
The following attended the meeting: 
 
City Council: Mayor Martin; Councilmembers Johnson, Quigley, Wickstrom and 

Withhart 
 
Staff:   Terry Schwerm, City Manager 
   Rebecca Olson, Assistant to City Manager 
   Fred Espe, Finance Director 
   Mark Maloney, Public Works Director 
   Debbie Maloney, Assistant Finance Director 
 
UPDATE OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
 
City Manager Terry Schwerm reviewed the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) noting updated 
changes. 
 
Collector Streets 
There are no major changes to this section.  Key projects include:   
 

• Lexington Avenue improvements at County Road F and Gramsie, scheduled for next year; 
the City contribution is for storm water improvements 

• Rehab of Gramsie Road and Victoria Street in 2016 
• Highway 49 rebuild between I-694 and Highway 96, when the Rice Street bridge is rebuilt 
• The North Owasso Boulevard project may be pushed back a year from 2019 because the 

City has fully used the MSA funds for road reconstruction and maintenance, and there will 
not be sufficient MSA funds for that project.   

 
Mr. Maloney noted that there is more concern about discharge into Lake Owasso from North 
Owasso Boulevard than the condition of the pavement. Further, Mr. Maloney stated that 20% of 
City roads are collector streets.  The money received from gas tax money under MSA is often 
times not used for City roads but is used to pay the County when the County requires the City to 
pay a portion of the cost on County projects on arterial and collector roads in Shoreview.   
 



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING—OCTOBER 13, 2014 2 

 

Councilmember Wickstrom asked if having to use MSA funds for County road projects is an 
issue to discuss with legislators.  Mr. Schwerm responded that this is common practice around 
the metro area.  The funding formula is constitutionally established.  He does not believe it 
should be a legislative priority.  
 
Councilmember Wickstrom expressed concern that the gas tax funding for 20% of collector 
streets in Shoreview is actually going to the County.  Mr. Maloney explained that the MSA funds 
coming to the City is the funding source used when the County requires a City contribution for 
road projects.  Gas tax money received is then not used on City MSA roads.  The issue is that 
more money is needed for transportation improvements. 
 
Mayor Martin noted that from the public perspective, there is no difference.  Generally, residents 
do not know which are County roads or City roads, but it is all the City’s responsibility. 
 
Street Improvements 
Mr. Schwerm stated that one new project is the Quiet Zone project for 2015.  The biggest hurdle 
will be CP Rail scheduling its portion of improvements and bidding the work according to state 
requirements.  Mr. Maloney added that Mn/DOT is constantly hearing about rail issues in the 
Twin Cities and is trying to ease the process for spending the allocated money.  There are strict 
state protocols that need to be followed for using the state bonding money that has been allocated 
to Shoreview. 
 
Next year’s street project is the Turtle Lane neighborhood, which may include Schifsky Road.  
There may be a new development of 10 lots on Grand Avenue, which would require 
improvements to Grand Avenue.  The developer would fund a major portion, but the City’s 
Street Renewal Fund cannot fund the remaining portion if it is used for Schifsky Road.   
 
Park Improvements 
Major improvements planned are: 
 

• Wading pool replacement in 2015 
• Wilson Park playground and shelter replacement in 2015 
• McCullough Park renovation in 2017 
• Shamrock Park renovation in 2019 

 
Trail Rehab and Extensions 
The Lexington Avenue trail extension is being completed this year.  A large part of that trail was 
funded through the park dedication fee received from the Pulte development.   
 
Councilmember Withhart noted that the City built trails in County parks.  He asked if they are 
being maintained by the County, as some are broken up with roots.  Mr. Schwerm answered that 
the County does maintain the trails and does some plowing in the winter.   
 
Municipal Buildings 
Accelerated the gymnasium roof replacement to 2014 from 2015.  The project cost is $200,000, 
much less than the original $400,000 estimate.  A vapor barrier is being added to help with 



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING—OCTOBER 13, 2014 3 

 

leaking.  With the heavy snow last winter, there were many leaks in the gym area and more 
recently in the playground.   
 
Mayor Martin asked if the office furniture scheduled was done recently.  Mr. Schwerm explained 
that private office furniture was replaced.  This project would be for modular furniture in Parks 
and Recreation Department.   
 
A new project that was added to the CIP is to increase the number of family locker rooms in the 
Community Center. 
 
Councilmember Withhart stated that he would support moving up the family locker rooms in the 
CIP schedule.  Mr. Schwerm commented that the project will include five or six changing areas 
but one shared shower. Mr. Schwerm stated that the main purpose of the shower is for children 
to rinse off before they go into the pool.  The plan is similar to how family changing areas are 
being done in other locations. 
 
Mr. Schwerm stated that the Community Center addition is scheduled in 2017 at a cost of 
between $2 million and $4 million.  There are several different methods of funding that can be 
explored.  This planned expansion needs to be discussed by the Council and Park and Recreation 
Commission in more detail to determine priorities before more accurate costs can be established. 
 
Councilmember Withhart noted that few people use Wilson Park compared to the Community 
Center.  Mr. Schwerm stated that park usage varies and is determined by scheduled activities at a 
particular park.  There are two Little League fields at Wilson, which sometimes cannot be used 
during the season due to the wet soils at Wilson Park.  
 
Utility Improvements 
In 2015, the following improvements are scheduled: 
 
• Water main replacement on Lexington at approximately $350,000, as part of a County project 
• Sewer line on Highway 96 will have a new lift station 
• Updated cost for water treatment plant at $11 million 
• Sanitary sewer rehab lining projects that are done every four or five years 
• Major equipment, such as computer, fire equipment and vehicles will not change much 

 
Councilmember Withhart asked if the fire equipment is owned by the Fire Department.  Finance 
Director Espe explained that fire equipment are not City assets.  However, because it is such a 
large dollar amount, it comes out of the Fixed Asset Revolving Fund.  Mr. Schwerm added that 
the equipment would come back to the City if the Department disbanded. 
 
Councilmember Quigley asked if the figures for computer replacement and software upgrades 
are accurate.   
 
Mayor Martin noted that the financial software is 20 years old.  Staff discussed the status of the 
financial software and noted that significant research will need to occur before it is replaced.  
 



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING—OCTOBER 13, 2014 4 

 

Councilmember Withhart asked if the financial software has regular updates.  Mr. Espe stated 
that the software is custom made and is updated by a Shoreview employee who is one of the only 
people that is currently an “expert” with the software that is being used.   
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
Wilson Park Playground:  Mr. Schwerm stated that the playground replacement is being funded 
from the Fixed Asset Revolving Fund.  The question is whether this replacement is a high 
priority.  The equipment is approximately 20 years old and is functioning fine, but does need to 
be replaced within a few years.  The Master Plan calls for a shelter that will allow parents to 
watch children both at the playground and on the baseball fields.  The playground and hockey 
rink would be relocated as part of the renovation plan. 
 
Councilmember Johnson asked if nearby residents are contacted regarding feedback on desired 
changes at the park.  If the equipment is 20 years old and there is not enough money, would there 
be consideration to taking out everything and let it sit for a year or two.  Mr. Schwerm stated the 
City does seek neighborhood feedback prior to any park renovation.  The City has never taken all 
the playground equipment out of a park and left it empty. 
 
Mayor Martin suggested that Parks and Recreation Commission members spend time observing 
parks near their neighborhoods to provide the City with accurate usage information.  Mr. 
Schwerm stated that maintenance workers can also be asked about usage observed when 
maintenance work is being done. 
 
Family Locker Rooms 
 
Mr. Schwerm stated that this project means taking the current family locker rooms out of 
commission for two or three months to construct a new family changing area, which is estimated 
at $400,000.  Mayor Martin suggested making this part of the Community Center expansion, 
which is scheduled in a year or two. 
 
Councilmember Wickstrom stated that there will be more options if the family locker rooms 
were included in the expansion and would provide added justification for an expansion.  
 
Councilmember Withhart agreed and added that a better bid price for the work would be 
obtained through being part of a bigger project.   
 
Outdoor Wading Pool  
 
The study done on this feature identified a cost of $1 million to $1.2 million for this project. Mr. 
Schwerm indicated that based on discussions he has had with manufacturers this cost seems 
high. However, a more detailed design is needed to obtain an accurate cost estimate.   
 
Councilmember Quigley asked the value of adding the wading pool feature.   
 



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING—OCTOBER 13, 2014 5 

 

Mayor Martin stated she sees the wading pool as a potential revenue generator.  In summer, 
people can be outside instead of having to be inside to use the pool.  A zero depth pool would 
create a space that would be very busy with toddlers and parents. 
 
Councilmember Withhart questioned whether there are enough warm summer days to justify an 
outdoor wading pool. 
 
Mr. Schwerm stated that one thing missing from the water park is a zero depth water area with 
various splashing/dumping water features.  It would generate more revenue if it could be built as 
an indoor/outdoor feature.  Then there would be revenue all year. 
 
Councilmember Johnson stated that she would like to see more data about features that members 
and visitors would like to have.  It is difficult to justify the expenditure without good data.  Mr. 
Schwerm stated that when the Community Center expansion was constructed, membership 
revenue was projected to be $450,000; currently, revenue is at $1.1 million.  This next expansion 
will not be able to generate a significant increase in revenue, but will focus more on maintaining 
membership and enhancing facilities and programs. The two things that would yield the largest 
increase in revenue would be an indoor expansion to the water park and expansion to the indoor 
playground.   
 
Mayor Martin stated that the Community Center has been transformed with demand.  Demand 
and transformation both happen at the same time.  She goes to water parks with grandchildren, 
and it is wonderful to have an outdoor play area.  A zero depth pool allows toddlers to play on 
their own.   
 
Councilmember Withhart stated that when improvements are made, there is an uptick in usage.  
Improvements keep the current base of users and adds more.  People want to come to a clean 
updated facility. 
 
Mayor Martin suggested that because the wading pool is in an isolated area, it could be done 
before the expansion.  Then there would be pool usage activity while other areas of the building 
are closed during an expansion. 
 
Councilmember Quigley asked about the turnover at the Community Center.  Mr. Schwerm 
responded approximately 80% of members are retained, which is better than other health clubs.  
He believes there is a high retention rate because it is a community based facility with reasonable 
membership rates. 
 
Community Center Expansion 
 
Mr. Schwerm referred to an expansion study done earlier in the year.  The plan with the most 
support was the expansion off the gym area designed to expand the indoor play area and add 
multi-purpose rooms for increased recreation and fitness programming.  Daily admissions would 
increase because the playground would enhance birthday party revenue.  A second story could 
further increase recreation programs, adding drama, music, senior programs, art, etc.  A second 
floor could also provide additional space for community meetings and community groups, such 



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING—OCTOBER 13, 2014 6 

 

as the band or Historical Society.  A second story would be approximately 7500 square feet at a 
cost of about $1.0 million above the lower level expansion. Mr. Schwerm briefly discussed the 
financing of the project from the Community Investment Fun and indicated that more fiscal 
analysis needs to be done before proceeding. 
 
Mr. Schwerm stated that other cities are creating civic center parks and veterans’ memorials.  He 
would like to see an updated Commons Master Plan that incorporates some of these new 
features.   
 
Mayor Martin stated that she would like to address park needs and expansions aggressively.  She 
suggested Councilmembers tour other recreational facilities in other cities.   
 
There was consensus of the Council for a tour to see other facilities before deciding on details for 
the Community Center expansion. The Council would then work with the Parks and Recreation 
Commission on detailed plans. 
 
Library 
Mayor Martin stated that the City has approved the  purchase of a residential property for the 
library to build a new regional library.   The current library land was sold to the County for 
$1.00.  That property has become very valuable, and she believes the City should be fully 
reimbursed for the new purchase.   
 
Councilmember Johnson suggested the City possibly purchase the old library back. 
 
Mr. Schwerm stated that buying the old library would be approximately $4 million, and then 
there would be $2 million to $3 million in renovation costs.  The building would then have to be 
staffed.  It would likely be more cost effective to expand the Community Center. 
 
Mayor Martin called a short break and then reconvened the meeting. 
 
COMCAST 
 
Mr. Schwerm reported that the City has sent its letter of withdrawal to the North Suburban 
Communications Commission (NSCC) by the end of the year.  The City has been working with 
legal counsel on a new franchise agreement with Comcast.  The first negotiating session focused 
on the need for airing and rebroadcasting of Council and Planning Commission meetings.  Issues 
yet to be worked out include the number of public, education and government access channels.  
One is needed for each school district, one for City government and one public access channel.   
Some programs could be aired on both the government and public access channels, such as the 
Environmental Quality Committee (EQC) speaker series. 
 
Councilmember Wickstrom stated that she sees primary use of the government channel first and 
then growing to expand into other public uses.  She suggested possibly starting with a YouTube 
channel. 
 



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING—OCTOBER 13, 2014 7 

 

Councilmember Quigley stated that he sees public access use as very fluid.  He would like to 
know what programs of other cities look like after a year of broadcasting.  Mr. Schwerm reported 
that staff visited Coon Rapids.  Coon Rapids has local origination programs that are considered a 
benefit to the community and are different from public access programs, such as local school 
sports, community events and a weekly news show.  Their programming has become another 
method of communicating with residents.  
 
Mr. Schwerm stated that the PEG revenues, according to Comcast, are only to be used for capital 
equipment.  There may be a capital grant available for the equipment needed by the City.  
Currently the PEG fee is $4.15 and scheduled to increase to $4.35 in 2015.  One of the 
advantages of opting out of the NSCC is that additional franchise revenue could provide funding 
to hire communications staff to coordinate community programs.   
 
Mayor Martin stated that Comcast did come to agreement with the NSCC with similar terms to 
what was in the prior franchise agreement.   
 
Mr. Schwerm listed the advantages and disadvantages of membership in the NSCC: 
 
Advantages for Membership: 

• NSCC is more knowledgeable in establishing administration of cable network - this could 
be important in working with a new group, Charter, when that company takes over from 
Comcast   

• Has a public access programming presence 
• Collaborative with other cities 
• NSCC has staff to troubleshoot issues 
• Would require less staff time for local programming 
• CTV provides local programming assistance to cities 
• The City would continue to be able to influence a new vision for NSCC 
• Better bargaining power as part of a larger group 

 
Disadvantages of Membership: 

• NSCC has not demonstrated strong interest in changing the status quo 
• The franchise fee contribution to NSCC may increase to fund public access programming 
• NSCC is not positioned well for the current changes facing public access and television 
• Higher PEG fees for subscribers 

 
Councilmember Wickstrom stated that the NSCC is positioning itself for HD TV.  She does not 
see broadcasting of public meetings on HD TV. 
 
Councilmember Withhart stated HD TV does not matter because no one knows where this 
technology is going.  Mr. Schwerm stated that the reason to convert to HD TV is for viewership 
because most households only watch programs that are in HD.   
 
 Advantages for Withdrawal  

• City gains control of all franchise fees  
• City defines the level of public access programming 



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING—OCTOBER 13, 2014 8 

 

• City could do more community based programming with the money saved in franchise fees 
by hiring a communications staff person with needed skills 

• City would receive all PEG fees to update technology equipment 
• Subscribers would pay less in PEG fees 
• Better relationship with franchise provider 
• Reduction in legal fees 

 
Councilmember Withhart stated that local programming could provide better coverage on 
Shoreview events without membership in the NSCC. 
 
Disadvantages for Withdrawal 

• Increase in staff time and potential need to add staff for increased public access 
programming 

• Will be more costly to operate alone 
 
It was the consensus of the Council to continue negotiations on its own for a franchise 
agreement.   
 
Councilmember Wickstrom stated that the memorandum of understanding agreement negotiated 
by NSCC obtains the PEG fee for operations.  It puts legal matters on hold until either party can 
re-initiate the formal process or until the company transfer takes place, or in July 2015.   
 
Mayor Martin stated that the City is taking a huge risk in leaving the NSCC, but she supports the 
withdrawal and wants to make sure the City gets a good agreement.   
 
Councilmember Quigley expressed his strong faith in staff’s ability to administer the franchise 
agreement as competently as everything else that is done in the City. 
 
OTHER ISSUES 
 
Mr. Schwerm stated that a special meeting will be held on November 10, 2014, before the 
regular workshop meeting to canvas the votes from the election.  Ms. Olson noted that statute 
requires the special meeting occur three days after the election.  Staff will check the requirements 
and notify Councilmembers. 
 
Mayor Martin noted the lighting ceremony was changed to Thursday, November 20th because 
Monday, November 24th is a day when schools are out.  Ms. Olson stated that the choir from 
Turtle Lake School will provide music.  There was further discussion about obtaining risers and 
microphones for the children who sing. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING—OCTOBER 13, 2014 9 

 

 
 


